City of Dundee
City Council Meeting Minutes
March 19, 2024

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor David Russ called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.

COUNCIL AND STAFF ATTENDANCE
Attendance Mayor David Russ; City Councilors David Hinson, Bruce Starr, Tim Weaver, David Ford
and Jeannette Adlong. Absent: Storr Nelson.

Staff Attendance: City Administrator Steve Dahl; City Attorney Matthew Kahl; City Engineer Greg
Reid; Fire Chief Brandon Hamilton; and Administrative Assistant Melissa Lemen.

Public Attendance:

Alex Chiper, 520 SW 5" Street; Rob Daykin, 720 SW Scotsman Court; Arthur Chaput representing
Business Oregon. Via Zoom: John Southgate, Tourism Consultant, 88 S 4" Street, City of
Independence.

AGENDA CHANGES
None.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

CONSENT AGENDA

Action: To approve the Consent Agenda

4.1 City Council Minutes, January 2, 2024
4.2 City Council Minutes, January 16, 2024
4.3 City Council Minutes, March 5, 2024
4.4 City Council Goal Review
4.5 140 SW 5" Street Brochure
Action Required: Motion to Accept the Consent Agenda

Motion: C. Ford
Second: C. Weaver
Vote: Unanimous in favor.

C. Adlong asked why the brochure was included in the consent agenda, prompting C.A. Dahl to
explain that he believed Council would like to see the brochure. C. Ford proposed an amended motion
to remove the brochure from the consent agenda.

Pagel of 5



M. Russ noted that the January 16, 2024, minutes would need to be revised as the mayor’s report did
not accurately reflect the discussed topic. He asked that staff go back and review again.

ACTION: There was a motion to amend the previous motion approving the Consent Agenda,
Motion to amend the consent agenda by removing [tem No. 4.2 — the meeting minutes from

January 16, 2024, and Item No. 4.5 - 5" Street brochure.

OLD BUSINESS:

PRESENTATION ON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS

Arthur Chaput from Business Oregon approached Council and provided an overview of the process
and general information regarding development block grants. He also gave a better understanding of
how the city would be involved.

e Two chances each year to apply for this grant.

e Projects serve the whole county, not just the city.

e The City of Dundee only qualifies to serve low-income projects.

e  Once the first application goes through, there are 2 years to spend the funds. After the project is
completed, the grant would be closed. A federal audit is required after the following year and
would need to prove the building operated as advertised for 5 years, after which obligations are
relieved.

e Two grants at a time are allowed each year while meeting significant requirements.

UPDATE ON 9™ STREET

C.E. Reid updated Council, stating that they were currently awaiting utilities to begin moving poles. A
detailed memo on page 29 of the agenda packet was provided. M. Russ questioned whether there wasa
completion date for the road surface, to which C.E. Reid answered that it wouldn’t be determined until
the poles were moved. He also expressed support from the Terrain Landscape Architect, who suggested
four types of tree species to plant. He asked Council for their input on what street trees could be
planted and discussion ensured about that topic. It was noted that the Development Code section on
street trees needed to be revised. C. Ford asked for clarification on the completion date being
approximately May, and C.E. Reid confirmed that it would realistically be the end of May. M. Russ
noted the possibility of paving to start the beginning of May, to which C.E. Reid responded that it
might be possible.

C.E. Reid emphasized the importance of completing the underground work for Highway 99,
highlighting it as a high priority for the city. He mentioned that Comcast had already surveyed the
installed conduits and checked their continuity but has not received an update from them. He then
provided background information on the sidewalk undergrounding throughout the city.

C.E. Reid confirmed that the boring work for 9 Streel was currently underway to facilitate
underground installation and identified specific streets that currently don’t have conduits underground.

Page 2 of 5



He asked how the rest of the remaining work should be completed-- whether that be by the franchises
or be funded for a portion for the remaining work. Fusther discussion continued about the project.
funding, and franchising contracts. C. Ford raised questions about the legal authority related to the
franchising contracts. C. Starr noted a letter from 2016 on page 31 of the meeting packet, which read,
“to relocate utility facilities underground at no cost to the city when required to do so in writing by the
city, serving as a notice of intent to require such relocation”. Discussion ensued about the letter and its
potential relevance today. The consensus of Council was to verify any legal rights outlined in the code
and to engage in discussion with the franchises to complete the project.

UPDATE ON TMDL

C.E. Reid acknowledged the report was finished with DEQ except for one minor item-- the
effectiveness of the City's public oulreach efforts, Page 33 of ‘he agenda packet detailed the TDML
report. He suggested a poll be published in the next newslettay to get public feedback regarding how
many people are reading, and the usefulness of, the water quelity articles to satisfy this requirement.
He then informed Council that the adoption of the riparian, stream and wetland protection ordinance
was not yet completed, and that there was a penalty imposed if it was not done in the next six months,
He assured Council that is working with the contracted city planner to adopt this ordinance by the
deadline.

NEW BUSINESS:

AWARD OF ADA & PARKING GRANT

C.A. Dahl briefly explained that the city received the Travel Oregon Competitive Grant for the
planning and feasibility study to enhance the city’s parking and walkability in the downtown corridors.
He received two proposals, with Jenson Hughes being the higher ranked of the two.

ACTION: Motion to award a contract to Jenson Hughes for Tourism planning services.

Motion; C. Starr
Second: C. Ford
Vote: Unanimous in favor.

C. Hinson inquired about how the evaluation criteria points for both proposals were determined, to
which C.A. Dahl explained his process of determining the total points.

COUNCIL CONCERNS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

e C.Ford asked C.A. Dahl why the public input from the tourism open house was not included
on the agenda, and asked C. Starr if he had talked with John Southgate regarding the summary: -
Discussion ensued about the open house, as well as plans for another open house. The use ot
doorhangers and social media for advertising the next open house in April was also discussed.

Page 3 of 5



C. Ford also brought up the open house for Sander Estate Park. C.A. Dahl informed him that
the date had been changed to Aprill 11" with the assurance that everyone would receive a
notice about the meeting with their mailed water bills.

e C. Ford suggested putting the development block grants as a non-high priority this year to focus
on other ongoing projects. C.A. Dahl confirmed that it was only up for discussion, and nothing
would happen this year as neither project was ready.

e Discussion followed regarding grants and the various projects the city could pursue to meet its
needs.

e (. Adlong voiced concern regarding the maintenance of the tipsu palach Park and elaborated on
the funding needed to ensure its proper upkeep.

e Discussion briefly took place regarding the budget committee and its composition for the
upcoming fiscal year.

s C. Weaver inquired about the installation of school zone signs to be placed between 8" Street
and Edwards Drive. C.E Reid confirmed that signage would be posted within the upcoming
school year.

MAYOR'’S REPORT
None.

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT

e C.A. Dahl reminded Council about the SEI Filing with the deadline of April 15",

PUBLIC COMMENT

Rob Daykin spoke concerning the undergrounding and the 2016 letter referenced previously,
confirming that there should be information on this issue in the then city attorney’s records. He
explained there was a follow-up conversation with Comcast regarding the push back and advised
caution in approaching the matter. Discussion continued about the franchising contract. Daykin then
expressed his interest in being part of the budget committee if there were any vacancies.

Alex Chiper noted some concerns and questions he had, and offered suggestions to the Council:

e He suggested Council develop a vision for the future of Dundee to aid in decision
making when projects were presented to them.

Page 4 of 5



o He suggested the inclusion of a city map to help guide council meeting topics, ensuring
discussions align with the relevant locations and aiding the public in understanding the
context of discussions.

e Chiper asked for an update on the Welcome sign, as well as addressing a bush covering
the sign coming in from Newberg.

e He suggested installing a sign on the main road to indicate the presence of the tipsu
palach Park.

e Chiper requested that Council give an overview at one of the Council meetings of
events happening the following month.

M. Russ asked C.A. Dahl if the old company who installed the original sign got back to him, to which
Dahl confirmed they did not. M. Russ asked him to bring back the existing bid for approval at the next
meeting.

e Chiper inquired about the event through Waste Management, which is conducted twice
a year for a bulk yard cleaning pick up and noted that last year’s run was canceled.
C.A. Dahl confirmed that it would take place sometime in September or October,

EXECUTIVE SESSION:
City Council entered into Executive Session at 8:36 P.M. in accordance with ORS 192.660 (2) (e) to

conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property
transactions. Executive Session ended at 9:10 P.M. City Council did not reconvene.

e

" David Rugg,'Mayor

The meeting was adjourned at 8:35 P.M.

Attest:

Steve [féh/l, City Administrator/Recorder

Page 5 of 5



